
 
 

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
2 MONTGOMERY STREET, 3RD FL. 

JERSEY CITY, NJ  07302 
 

8/28/2014 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
 
To prospective Bidder(s) on Bid #39159 for GENERAL CLEANING SERVICES AT 
THE PORT AUTHORITY BUS TERMINAL (PABT) 
 

Due back on 9/10/2014, no later than 11:00AM 
(Originally due on 9/3/2014, no later than 11:00AM) 

 
 

I. CHANGES/MODIFICATIONS  
 
The following changes/modifications are hereby made to the solicitation documents:   
 
The bid due date is hereby extended to September 10, 2014, no later than 11:00 A.M. 
 

A. Part V, page 12, paragraph C, line 8, after the word “extending” add “a minimum 
of 30 feet high”. 
 

B. Part V, page 13, paragraph I, delete “500” and replace with “M30, power 
scrubber/degreaser”. 
 

C. Part V, page 13, delete paragraph J in its entirety and replace with the following: 
“The Contractor shall provide eight (8) Tennant Model 5700 with H20 
Technology or Port Authority approved equal (six (6) units must be 36” and two 
(2) units must be 32”). 
 

D. Part V, page 13, paragraph K, delete “Gene” and replace with “Genie”. 
 

E. Part V, page 15, 4th paragraph, delete the last 2 sentences in its entirety and 
replace with the following: 
“The Contractor shall supply a minimum of seven (7) seasonal uniforms for each 
full-time employee, which shall include seven (7) short-sleeved shirts and seven 
(7) long-sleeved shirts.” 
 

F. Part V, page 24, delete “Project Workers: 19 per day” and replace with the 
following: 
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“Project Workers: 21 per day  - Two (2) for the 6:00 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. shift, 
nineteen (19) for the 10:15 p.m. – 6:15 a.m. shift, 365 days per year, 366 days per 
leap year.” 
 

G. Delete the payroll records that were issued via addendum #1 dated August 21, 
2014, and replace with the revised payroll records.  
 

H. Part V, page 28, section 28, entitled “Truss Cleaning”, delete the last 2 sentences 
and replace with the following: 
“Cleaning shall consist of power washing with a mild detergent, as approved by 
the Manager, at a maximum pressure of 2,000 psi and at a maximum water 
temperature of 160°F, and hand scrubbing with a soft brush.  The Contractor shall 
be responsible for any damage to the trusses due to improper use of power 
washing.” 
 

I. Part V, page 53, “Exhibit A – Stations”, delete in its entirety “STATION:   8-30” 
and replace with the revised “STATION:   8-30” 

 
 

II. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
The following information is available in response to questions submitted by prospective 
Bidders.  The responses should not be deemed to answer all questions, which have been 
submitted by Bidders to the Port Authority.  It addresses only those questions, which the 
Port Authority has deemed to require additional information and/or clarification.  The 
fact that information has not been supplied with respect to any questions asked by a 
Bidders does not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any meaning, 
construction, or implication with respect to the terms.  
 
The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the 
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such information 
accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered during the performance of 
the Contract. The furnishing of such information by the Port Authority shall not create or 
be deemed to create any obligation or liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and 
each Bidder, by submitting its Bid, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the 
foregoing information, and that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible 
therefor in any manner whatsoever.  Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no 
representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its Commissioners, officers, 
agents, representatives, or employees, oral or in writing, shall impair or limit the effect of 
the warranties of the Bidder required by this Bid or Contract and the Bidder agrees that it 
shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever. 
The Questions and Answers numbering sequence will be continued   
 

Question #4 Can you provide copies of the pricing sheets of the current contract? 
Answer #4 
 

See attachment 1. 
 

Question #5 What is the current hourly wage of the Resident Manager? 
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Answer #5 
 

Refer to the payroll records. 

Question #6 What is the current hourly wage of the Assistant Resident Manager? 
Answer #6 
 

Refer to the payroll records.  

Question #7 Is the supply list provided, actual use or are these estimates for 
bidding purposes only? 

Answer #7 
 

Refer to Part II, page 5, section 15 entitled “Aid to Bidders”. 
 

Question #8 What is the average number of lawsuits per year? 
Answer #8 
 

The Port Authority does not supply this information. 
 

Question #9 Is the bidder responsible to pay for S.W.A.C?   Do we all have to 
front bill for all employees including management?  Is this one time 
or yearly? 

Answer #9 
 

Refer to Part II, page 4, section 13 entitled “Contractor Staff 
Background Screening” and the Standard Contract Terms and 
Conditions, page 18 of 30, section 33 entitled “Notification of 
Security Requirements”.  We anticipate approximately fifteen (15) 
individuals requiring background screening. 
 

Question #10 How many staff needs to be S.W.A.C? 
Answer # 10 Employees who would work in areas not open to the public would 

be required to be SWAC.  The Port Authority estimates that 
approximately 15 employees would require SWAC. 
 

Question #11 Since 32BJ is current contractor and 32BJ runs out in 2015, what 
happens if new increase exceeds CPI?  

Answer # 11 The Port Authority will not be responsible for any additional cost 
incurred by the Contractor due to the collective bargaining 
agreement.  
 

Question #12 Can we keep the current staff? 
Answer # 12 Refer to Part II, page 3, section 11, entitled “Bidder’s Additional 

Submittal Requirements”. 
 

Question #13 Who currently performs the cleaning of the truss?  Is this performed 
by the in-house staff or a subcontractor? If a subcontractor, please 
provide the name of the subcontractor.  

Answer # 13 Truss cleaning is not part of the current Contract. 
 

Question #14 Is the re-lamping currently performed by 32BJ members or Local 3 
members?  

Answer # 14 Relamping is currently being performed by the current Contractor’s 
staff. 
 

PS11All 
Page 3 of 7 



Question #15 There are not any sheets in the bid package to submit hourly rates 
for overtime, if incurred.  Will additional sheets be provided to us?  

Answer # 15 No.  
 

Question #16 Will award be determined based on best overall value or will it be 
lowest responsible bidder? ( firm fixed price) 

Answer # 16 The award will be based on the lowest responsible and responsive 
bidder. 
 

Question #17 Can a vendor take exceptions to the bid? 
Answer # 17 Refer to Part I, page 4, section 5, entitled “Firm Offer”. 

 
Question #18 Regarding interior use of motorized personnel lifts, please provide 

specifications of such vehicles and any miscellaneous supporting 
equipment. (weight restrictions, tire construction, plywood 
underlayment needs, traffic cones, safety fencing, normal usage 
hours, etc.) 

Answer # 18 Refer to Part V, page 13, paragraph K and Part V, page 19, section 
16 entitled “Safety Provisions”. 
 

Question #19 Regarding exterior window cleaning, is there currently a boom type 
truck used to clean the high glass/windows near the entrances?  

Answer # 19 No. 
 

Question #20 Should all the equipment be new? 
Answer # 20 Yes.  Refer to Part V, page 11, Section 8, entitled “Materials, 

Supplies and Equipment”. 
 

Question #21 Part V, page 13 K. states the contractor shall provide at least 2 Gene 
scissor lifts, as well as adequate OSHA scaffolding.  Does this mean 
scissor and scaffold? 

Answer # 21 Yes. 
 

Question #22 Please clarify if you want a set of 7 uniforms for part-time staff?   
Answer # 22 See letter E above. 

 
Question #23 Is there a locker for each employee? 
Answer # 23 Refer to Part V, page 18, section 14, entitled “Space Provided to the 

Contractor”. 
 

Question #24 Are mats to be purchased new every year or can they be laundered 
yearly? 

Answer # 24 See Part V, page 25, section entitled, section 21 entitled “Walk Off 
Mats”. 
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Question #25 Part V, page 13 J. states 8 Tennant M30.  Is this count correct?   
Answer # 25 See letter C above. 

 
Question #26 The project crew works 3rd shift.  Are they strictly Monday thru 

Friday? 
Answer # 26 No. 

 
Question #27 Can you provide the current uniform service carrier? 
Answer # 27 The Port Authority does not have this information. 

 
Question #28 The estimated consumption calls for 100 C-Fold and 75 cases of roll 

towels.  Where are they being used because they are not being used 
in the public restrooms?  

Answer #28 Non-public restrooms. 
 

Question #29 Of existing staff, how many where offered/given the HBV as per 
OSHA regulations? 

Answer #29 This Port Authority does not have this information. 
 

Question #30 What areas are currently subcontracted? 
Answer #30 None. 

 
Question #31 How are lunch and other breaks covered?  Example: Does Port 

Authority allow staggered breaks, 2 people go, while 2 others are on 
call for the stations?   

Answer #31 Refer to Part V, page 22, Section 20, entitled “Minimum Mandatory 
Staffing”. 
 

Question #32 Can you provide a copy of the sign-in sheet for the site visit?  
Answer #32 See attachment 2. 

 
Question #33 Please verify the startup date of the new contract 
Answer #33 Refer to Part II, page 2, section 3, entitled “Expected Date of 

Commencement of Contract”. 
 

Question #34 Are any union staffs considered lead workers? 
Answer #34 Lead workers are not a requirement of the bid document. 

 
Question #35 Part V, page 12 you request 2 sets of scaffolding capable of 

extending over all motor stairs.  How far does it need to extend, 
please provide size/dimensions. 

Answer #35 See letter A above. 
 

Question #36 Please confirm the lines of demarcation separating the subway 
(MTA) and contractor work space (PA) as being the first set of 
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doors while exiting the bus terminal (PA). 

Answer #36 The line of demarcation separating the subway (MTA) and 
contractor work space (PA) in both the North Wing  & South Wing 
is the set of Subway level doors (inclusive of the doors) located east 
of the stairs leading from the Subway level to the respective 8th Ave 
lobbies. In the South Wing, these Subway level doors are located at 
approximately Column line 32. In the North Wing, these doors are 
located east of Column line 67. These doors are Port Authority 
property and are included in the contract.  
 

Question #37 Please confirm the lines of demarcation between the serviced and 
non-serviced space at the bus parking areas as being the entrance 
doors from the parking area. 

Answer #37 The Contractor’s responsibility extends beyond the platform/gate 
doors and includes the exterior of the gates and the bus operating 
areas. 
 

Question #38 Will hourly rate sheets be provided for the resident manager and 
assistant resident manager? 

Answer #38 No. 
 

Question #39 Will the monthly billing be based on the monthly lump sum pricing 
submitting on the pricing sheets? 

Answer #39 Refer to Part III, page 3, section 3 entitled “Payment”. 
 

Question #40 Do you require a replacement for the Administrative clerk for 
vacation and sick time? 

Answer #40 Yes. 
 

Question #41 Can a Supervisor be used to cover the vacation and sick time of the 
assistant Resident manager? 

Answer #41 Yes.  However the covering Supervisor must be back filled by 
another Supervisor. 
 

Question #42 Can you provide the calculation of hourly rate forms for the cleaners 
and supervisors. 

Answer #42 See attachment 3. 
 
 
This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Bid upon 
submission. 
 
In case any Bidder fails to conform to these instructions, its Bid will nevertheless be 
construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 
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 THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
 
 
 KATHY LESLIE WHELAN 
 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 
 COMMODITIES AND SERVICES DIVISION 
 
BIDDER'S FIRM NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO 
SELENE ORTEGA, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (201) 395-3407 or at 
sortega@panynj.gov. 
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